# Making the most of ePlan

LeaséPlan

### Online fleet management at your fingertips

ePlan is LeasePlan USA's one-stop online destination, enabling fleet managers to have on-demand visibility into the key milestones throughout the vehicle and driver journey. ePlan empowers fleet managers to be more productive with:

- + Managing drivers, assets, services, and transactions
- + Accessing critical information and exception reporting

+ Analyzing trends and identifying cost-saving opportunities



### Table of contents

Adding a new driver	3
Editing a driver	4
Changing a driver assignment	
Terminating a driver	
Editing a vehicle	
Editing a garage address	11
Ordering strategy & planning	
Factory ordering	14
Vehicle order status	18
Renewal tools	20
Requesting replacement documents	23
Fleet reporting	26





## + Adding a new driver

If you recently had a new driver join your team, it's easy to add them in ePlan in just a few steps.

- From the ePlan homepage, click the "Driver" tab.
- Click the "Add Driver" button.
- Enter driver information.

		Driver Name(L/F/M1) Address 1	LPUS Demo	Driver ID Home Business	Ext Ext
Plan that Driver Search      Driver Search      Driver Search      Driver Search      Clent Selection M      Driver ID      Chy      State Select One      Class M     Select One      Uvier Filds      Class Select One      Uvier Select      Class Select One      V      Vier Select One      V	Reports How Reporting Interactive Classificands      Driver Status Criteria      Driver Status      Driver Status      Sort Criteria      Sort on y results      Baccending Coescending      Sort Field      [Lash New eV]		Create User	Cell Fax Email Driver Note Driver License Information Drivers License State of Issue Select One Expiration Date	
Email Address				2	



#### best practices

To prevent duplicate records, always search for a driver first to ensure they are not already in ePlan. If searching by name, remember to check for maiden names, name changes and preferred names.

Always remember to add cell phone numbers and email addresses to ensure drivers can stay up-to-date on key vehicle milestones.

The correct county is very important for vehicle registration purposes. If the prepopulated county is incorrect, be sure to click "override."

#### expert tips



If you do not have an employee-specific Driver ID, ePlan will generate one. Be sure to click the check boxes under the driver settings to indicate what your drivers can access in the portal.



## + Editing a driver

It's important to keep driver information maintained on a regular basis. The correct contact data - address, email and phone number - is vital in ensuring your driver receives important documents and stays informed throughout the vehicle life cycle.

- Search for a driver to edit in the "Driver" tab or find them through Quick Search.
- Select the driver you want to edit.
- Edit driver detail and user fields.



#### expert tips



If you know the driver's last name or Driver ID, a Quick Search on the homepage is easiest. You can also do partial searches using the first few letters of a first or last name.

Changing the driver class determines what kind of vehicles are available to order. \*Only Fleet Managers have access to change this.

Search



You can search by driver status as well! Try searching for terminated or active drivers only.

Results will include active, unassigned and terminated drivers unless specified on the search tab

User fields are completely customizable and a great tool to personalize reporting or views in ePlan.

You can also allow drivers to edit their own profiles in MyLeasePlan, our mobile app for drivers.

## + Changing a driver assignment

If you need to change a driver's vehicle assignment, it's easy to do in ePlan! Accurate vehicle assignments and up-to-date contact information can streamline the driver experience when it comes to vehicle delivery, title and registration, remarketing and more.

19	304 - (705)
Home / Fleet Searc	h
Fleet Search Enter the search on	iteria and check the fields to view in
Fleet Search Crite	ria
Client Selection	All V
Client Unit#	
Last Name	
First Name	
Driver ID	
ePlan Unit#	0
Cost Center	

In the "Fleet" tab, enter your search criteria to look up a vehicle. Select "View Vehicle."



From the Fleet List, tap the icon on the left to view the vehicle record.

D	ownload	List				
4						
	Status	Client No.	ePlan Unity_	Client Unit#	Driver ID	Driver Name
3	A	306	5	77132	10124155	FAIRBANKS, ROBERT G
3	A	306	12	78801	10163907	Carver, Daniel
3-	A	306	17	77135	000002499	Stout. Jim
-	A	306	18	77134	10124328	Johnson, Vernon S
3	A	306	19	77133	10124065	Chaille, Monte W
3	A	306	21	77142	000001017	Steed, James W
34	A	306	22	77136	10123525	Breier, Michael J



LeasePlan



Driver IDs are unique to each driver in ePlan and are the best search option to locate a specific individual.

Performing regular audits of driver contact information and vehicle assignments can streamline communications, services and reduce delays throughout the life cycle of your fleet vehicles.

From here, simply search for the driver you wish to assign to this vehicle and click "View Driver."

First Name Frank Driver ID City State Select One  Class All	Driver Search		100.2	
Driver ID City State Select One  Class All  User Fields Select One	Last Name	Driver		
City State Select One  Class All  User Fields Select One		ridin		
Class All			-	
User Fields Select One 🗸		Select One	*	
	Class	All 👻		(meaning (m)
Email Address	User Fields			
	Email Addres	is		



LeaséPlan

#### keep in mind

If the vehicle is changing states and you are enrolled in our License & Title services, you can initiate a state change during the driver change process.



Select the driver you will be assigning to the vehicle by clicking the icon on the left.



You can also quickly change driver assignment right from Fast-Path Access.

You have the option to terminate the current driver at the same time if needed. Click "Save" and you're done.

#### river - Start Date **Driver Status**

Please check the box if you would you Terminate the driver Z Driver, Frank

#### Vehicle Garage Address

If this vehicle has a garaged address, the d making will not effect the vehicle location or change. Would you like to clear the garaged Clear Vehicle Garage Address

NOTE: You are about to change the y Save Cancel

Wvacy Statement



It is illegal to operate a vehicle primarily in a state it is not registered in.



## + Terminating a driver

If you ever need to terminate a driver for any reason, it can be done in ePlan in just a few steps. Here's how:

Before you terminate a driver that is assigned to a vehicle, you'll want to reassign the vehicle to a new driver first.

Driver Search C	riteria vient and and and and
Client Selection	
Last Name	Driver
First Name	Frank
Driver ID	
City	
State	Select One
Class	All
User Fields	Select One
Email Address	
View Driver A	dd Driver

In the "Driver" tab, search for the driver you would like to terminate.

When your driver is assigned to a vehicle and you wish to terminate them, scroll down to the "Vehicle Assignment" section and click "Change Driver."



## best practices

It's a good idea to confirm the driver you are reassigning the vehicle to is already in ePlan prior to the driver change and termination.

Make sure to check the new driver's contact information for updates. This ensures accuracy for future communications and service delivery.



#### keep in mind

Registration renewals are based on the driver's address in ePlan - or garage address if applicable - so it is crucial to keep the correct drivers assigned to your fleet vehicles and driver contact information up-to-date.





You have the option to backdate the start date for current and new drivers if needed.

You can always reactivate a terminated driver if applicable.

#### What is a terminated driver?

If one of your employees has left the company, changed roles or is no longer an active driver for any reason, it's best to use the terminated status. Don't worry - a driver record remains in ePlan so you always have a historical view of your fleet activity. And, you can always re-activate them later if needed.

## + Editing a vehicle

Fleet managers often need to edit vehicle information, such as Client Unit #, vehicle class or level structure. It's easy to do in ePlan in just a few steps:

	an <sup>.</sup>	Fleet Driver Ser
Home / Flee	et Search	and - 1000 lower
Fleet Se		ria and check the fields to view in the
Fleet Sear		
Client Se	election [	All 🗸
Client Un	nit# [	
M Cherry Of		1.000
Last Nan	ne	driver
the second se		ariver
Last Nan First Nan Driver II	me [	
Last Nan First Nar	me [	
Last Nan First Nan Driver II	ne [ ) [ lit# [	
Last Nar First Nar Driver II ePlan Ur	ne [ ) [ lit# [	

To edit a vehicle in ePlan, select the Fleet Tab and enter the search criteria to locate the vehicle you wish to edit. Then select "View Vehicle."

If your search returns multiple vehicles, use the icon on the left to edit the vehicle record from the Fleet List view.

t Level Edit Gara icle Client 306-LP	t Vehicle <mark>  Fleet M</mark> ge   Edit User Field PUS Demo / <u>Fleet List</u> / <u>Edit Va</u>	
		<u>ehicle</u> / Edit
ePlan Unit#	Client Unit#	Driver M
<b>n</b> 0	chent ont	Drive
Jicle Inform	ation	
te#		-
	Select C	
	ePlan Unit# 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	ePlan Unit# Client Unit# o icle Information Unit#



LeaséPlan

Be sure to update billing levels if you're moving the vehicle from one driver level to another. This will ensure invoices are sent to the proper location.

If you're enrolled in License & Title services, keeping your vehicle data up-to-date ensures registration renewal occurs seamlessly.



If you change the Client Unit #, be sure to notify your Account Manager so we can properly list the new number to any invoices, fuel cards, Vehicle Maintenance Guide (VMG), etc.



3

Once on the Vehicle Detail page, select the Edit Vehicle tab on the black navigation bar. From there, you have the ability to edit the Client Unit #, vehicle class or level information for the vehicle selected.

Once you've updated the information, click Save.





The Vehicle Usage drop down helps fleet managers classify vehicles for reporting purposes. For example, labeling vehicles as a pool, spare, or temporary vehicle can help with greater visibility to your fleet's makeup.



ePlan offers the ability to lookup vehicles using a variety of search criteria, such as Client Unit #, Driver Name, Driver ID, VIN, city, state and more.



## + Editing a garage address

Some fleets utilize the Garage Address when a vehicle is housed at a different location than the driver's home, such as a job site or out-of-state address.

To edit a Garage Address in ePlan, select the Fleet Tab and enter the search criteria to locate the vehicle you wish to edit. Then select "View Vehicle." If your search returns multiple vehicles, use the icon on the left to edit the vehicle record from the Fleet List view. Once on the Vehicle Detail page, select the Edit Vehicle tab on the black navigation bar and then the Edit Garage.

Edit the address and click save when done.









You can change the existing garage address or even clear it, by clicking reset.



The garaged address will be used for registration purposes only. The driver's address will be used for all mailings. This can be verified in the driver record under Driver Detail.



When updating the garaged address, enter ZIP code and select "Find ZIP" to auto-populate the city, state and county.

You can also change the search option to "by state" to locate an address by city or state.



Be sure to verify the correct county for registration purposes, and override if needed.

## + Ordering strategy & planning

As you're planning for your next order cycle, you need to know which vehicle is the best option for your fleet.



Many fleet managers assess projected cost per mile, cost per month, fuel economy or carbon emission to find the vehicle that best suits their fleet's goals and objectives.

Be sure to consider what's best for your drivers' operational needs, such as interior legroom, towing capacity or horsepower.

For the best results, create a separate LCCA for each vehicle segment. ePlan's Life Cycle Cost Analysis tool can help. This feature allows you to compare up to 30 vehicles at a time to better understand the projected costs of operating a vehicle throughout the life of its lease.

This Life Cycle Analysis, or LCCA, combines financial projections with additional data points so you can choose the vehicle that best meets your company goals while keeping your drivers' needs in mind.

Life Cycle Cost Analysis		_
Name ePlan Demo Skip Wizard>>		
Image: Months In Service         How many months do you expect to keep your vehicle in service?         36         MONTHS         Image: Miles in Service         At what mileage do you expect to replace the vehicle?         Image: Miles in Service         At what mileage do you expect to replace the vehicle?         Image: Miles         Image: Miles in Service         At what mileage do you expect to replace the vehicle?         Image: Miles         Image: Miles	Fuel Cost Per Gallon         What do you expect the average price per gallon to be over the life of the vehicle?         Image: S2.00         PER GALLON         % Percent City         Over the life of the vehicle, what is the percentage of city mileage?         55.00         PERCENT         % Percent Highway         Over the life of the vehicle, what is the percentage of highway mileage?         45.00         PERCENT	Here's hov get starte From the "Orde select "Life Cycle then "New LC
SAVE CANCEL		

Be sure to name it. Customize the operating variables, such as months in service, miles in service, tire replacement intervals and fuel costs. For a more accurate projection, you can apply additional inputs, including fees and depreciation or interest rates.

LeaséPlan



Now you can compare vehicles side-by-side to review the data that is most important to your fleet and better inform decisions for your upcoming order cycle.



For a faster analysis, be sure to have key data points readily available - such as lease terms, depreciation value and admin fees.

To save time, click "Set Default Parameters" to automatically populate your custom data points each time you create a new LCCA.

did you know The Life Cycle Cost Analysis tool allows you to better understand the components that make up a vehicle's total cost of ownership, such as maintenance, repair and fuel costs, depreciation, fees, taxes, interest and insurance.

The capitalized cost is all the charges or fees that roll into putting a new vehicle into a lease, such as tax, title and license.

The book value is the expected value of the vehicle at the end of the lease.

You can export your analysis into an Excel file, or save your vehicle comparisons to access them any time from the LCCA List tab.

Export Type Excel Workbook (XLSX)

## LeasePlan

## + Factory ordering

Ordering vehicles direct from the manufacturer is one of the most effective methods of vehicle acquisition, assuring you have a custom-built vehicle that is suited for the job at hand. ePlan makes this process easy and efficient.

From the "Order" tab, click on "Create Factory Order."

If you're replacing an existing vehicle in your fleet, select "Replacement Order." Otherwise, select "New Order."



Our vehicle acquisition experts will work to find the best dealer in the closest proximity that typically handles courtesy deliveries. However, if you have a preferred dealership you want the vehicle delivered to, enter that information. We will try to accommodate that if the dealer does courtesy deliveries for fleet.



### STEP 1

#### **Choose your Vehicle Selection**

- Specify your Spec Type by selecting Custom or Spec Code. As a best practice, use the Spec Code option to order a vehicle from your approved specs. Alternatively, you can build your custom vehicle on the fly by selecting Custom.
- Indicate the Plate Type Commercial, Passenger, or Special. This helps assure the vehicle is registered correctly.
- Click "Next" to continue.



### STEP 2

#### Select your Vehicle Options

- When creating your order from a spec you can:
  - Verify or select new exterior and interior colors or seat options.
  - Verify or select new options for powertrain, wheels and tires, additional packages, fleet options and emissions.
  - Once all sections are verified, click "Next."





#### Enter Vehicle Replacement Details

- Search for the vehicle you are replacing using the search criteria and click "View Vehicle."
- Verify odometer reading and disposal information.
- If you do not want LeasePlan to handle pick up and sale of the replacement vehicle, select Client Information Only.



If you are replacing a vehicle owned by another lessor, click the Third Party Replacement link to complete disposal information.

### STEP 4

#### Verify Driver Assignment

- The driver is assigned either by looking up an existing driver's name or driver ID or you can add a new driver.
- Click "Next" to continue.

#### Using the Garaged Address

If you want the vehicle delivered and/or registered to an address other than assigned driver's address, you can enter it here. All mail will be sent to the driver's address and the registration and delivery will go to the garage address.





Some vehicles in your fleet could have options added by third party vendors. These additional options are called "Upfit Options." Be sure to factor in additional time if your vehicle has after-market upfit options. As you're planning your order cycle, remember to stay up-to-date with manufacturer production and order cutoff dates.



LeaséPlan

As a best practice, select "Spec Code" from the Spec Type options to order from one of your pre-built and approved specs.

If your vehicle requires upfitting, click the checkbox for Upfit Specs to add to the selected vehicle.

Vehicle Replacement shows the vehicle you selected to be replaced.

Current Mileage shows the most recent odometer LeasePlan has on file for this vehicle. If you want to update the odometer, click into the field and enter the updated information. You must click "Confirm Mileage" when you're done.

Driver Assignment shows the driver assigned to the Replacement Vehicle and will be the driver assigned to the vehicle you are ordering.

### STEP 5

#### Verify Billing Information

- Enter the Depreciation Term you want to assign to this order. The rate will automatically populate based on the term.
- If this is a replacement order, the level codes will carry over from the replacement vehicle. If this is a new order, you will need to assign corresponding level codes.
- Assign the correct FM program #, which will assure this vehicle is set up for the right services.
- Confirm if the new vehicle will be set up on Personal Mileage Reporting or not.
- Click "Next" to continue.
- You will then be asked if you are ready to complete the order. Click "yes."



he billing information for the vehicle you are ordering will be the same as the replacement vehicle.

	FastPath Access Select One.   Home Admin CourSpace (K) ethemical Earn Las
Client Order List   LeasePlan	Order List   Trouve Lattary Dinter   Create Stock Order   Quotes/Specs   Compare Vehicles   Life Cycle
Bome / Order / Create Factory	Order
Create Factory Order	
Complete all required pages on	
Order #: 2070	Is this a new or replacement order? ONew Order Replacement Order
75% Complete	Billing
Vehicle	Depreciation Term 36
2022 JEEP CHEROKEE [KLTM74] *Yehicle Ontions	Rate 2.78 %
	Nate (2:70 ) 90
Replacement	Level Codes
Unit#: 916(TEST01)	Cost Center 1 + LEASE PLAN L M
2013 BERTONE Acura-001	Region 0111 - 0111 FLEET/MIDWEST REGION
Driver	Level-3 level3 - LEVEL THREE *
VDriver Assignment ID: 000007066	Level-5 level5 - LEVEL FIVE *
Driver, Frank	LEVEL-3 HEVELS - LEVEL FIVE
Billing	User Administrated Fields
Billing Information Depr. 36Mo, /2.78%	Client Unit # # Must be Unique
Levels: 1 /0111 /level3	GenLedger1 General1
Additional Information	GenLedger2 General2
Dualer Preference Garage Information	FM Program # 24500 CARD, 5101, ERS, AM, FD *
User Fields Order Notes	PMR
	Vehicle on Personal Mileage Reporting
Back Next	
Save Cancel	



LeaséPlan



## + Vehicle order status

Once you have placed orders for new vehicles, you might want to check on the status from time to time. ePlan offers several ways to view and report on order statuses. Let's take a look at how you can stay informed on the order-to-delivery timeline.

1

From the Fleet Reporting tab, select "Inventory and Status" from the navigation menu and locate the Vehicle Order Status report.





Your drivers can access their vehicle's status in the MyLeasePlan app and be notified when it's time to pick up the vehicle at the dealer.



Be sure to give your drivers access to the MyLeasePlan app so they can report pickup and enter license plate information,

which helps ensure accurate data when it's time to renew.



2

On the next screen, you can customize your report to display the information you need to see.

Once you select the parameters, click on "View." When the report appears, click on "Export" to view in Excel.



	ers									
Client ID:	Ord	er Date Range:	Order Start E	ate:		Order En	d Date:		Statu	
(Select All)	All	*			2	_		9	- Long	(Select All)
1015										Active
										Terminated
										On Order
									Real	Cancelled
Level 1 Level 2										
	+									
Order Status Columns To	Show:				Report Section	ons to Sho	w:			
(Select All)					(Select /	AII)				
Client Number					Details					
Level 1					Summary					
Level 1 Description					Glossar	y: Order Sta	tus Definitions			
El Louol 2				···· 🐨						



- **UPF** = Update from the upfitter
- **MFR** = Update from the manufacturer
- **LP** = Update from LeasePlan

expert tips

Order status details can also be viewed from the LeasePlan Order List tab, on the vehicle record under Vehicle Detail tab or using the Fleet Search and filtering by Vehicle Status On-Order.

For further clarification on status definitions, check the glossary option and the list will be included in your report download.

	Glossary: Vehicle Order Status Definitions
Status	Definition
LP - ACKNOWLEDGED ORDER	LP acknowledges the receipt of the clients order request
LP - ASSIGNED DELIVERY	LP has assigned the delivering dealership
LP - ORDERED / PO SENT	LP ordered the vehicle and sent the PO to the OEM
MFR - ACCEPTED ORDER	OEM reports the order has been accepted
LP - PO SENT TO UPF	LP has sent the upfit PO to the Upfit vendor
UPF - PO RECEIVED	Upfitter reports receiving the LP PO
UPF - PROCESSED LP PO	Upfitter reports the date they processed the LP PO
MFR - SENT ORDER TO PLANT	OEM reports the order has been sent to the plant to be produced
MFR - SCHEDULED TO BE PRODUCED	OEM reports the order has been scheduled to be produced
MFR - TARGET PRODUCTION DATE	OEM reports a target production date has been assigned
MFR - READY TO BE PRODUCED	OEM reports the order is ready to be produced
MFR - ORDER LOCKED	OEM reports the order has been locked, therefore no further changes can be made to the order
MFR - VEHICLE PRODUCED	OEM reports the vehicle has been produced
MFR - POOL STORAGE	OEM reports the vehicle is in their Pool Storage location
MFR - SCHEDULED FOR SHIPMENT	OEM reports the vehicle has been scheduled for shipment
MFR - AT VEH PROCESSING CENTER	OEM reports the vehicle is at the processing center
MFR - VEHICLE AT FOREIGN PORT	OEM reports the vehicle has arrived at a foreign port to be transported to the USA
MFR - VEHICLE AT SEA	OEM reports the vehicle is at sea
MFR - VEH ARRIVED AT US PORT	OEM reports the vehicle has arrived at the USA port of entry
MFR - VEHICLE DIVERT TO	OEM reports the vehicle has been divert to another dealership from the orginal assigned dealership
MFR - RELEASED TO RAIL	OEM reports the vehicle has been release to transport via rail
MFR - RELEASED TO CONVOY	OEM reports the vehicle has been release to transport via a convoy
MFR - IN TRANSIT TO UPF	OEM reports the vehicle is in transit to the upfit vendor
UPF - VEHICLE RECEIVED	Upfitter reports the vehicle has arrived at their facility
UPF - ESTIMATED COMPLETION DT	Upfitter reports the estimated date to complete the work
UPF - PARTS RECEIVED	Upfitter reports they have received the suppled parts
UPF - SUPPLIED PARTS RECEIVED	Upfitter reports the supplied parts have been received
UPF - ACTUAL INSTALL START DT	Upfitter reports the actual installation start date
UPF - ACTUAL COMPLETION DATE	Upfitter reports the actual completion date of the work
UPF - COMPLETION DATE	Upfitter reports the completion date of the work
UPF - DATE OEM PICKED UP	Upfitter reports the date the OEM transport picked up the vehicle from their facility
UPF - SHIPPED FROM UPF	Upfitter reports the vehicle has left their facility
MFR - IN TRANSIT TO DLVRY LOC	OEM reports the vehicle is in transit to the delivery location
LP - DELIVERY PPWK GENERATED	LP has sent the MSO to the vendor managing the delivery
UPF - DELIVERED TO DEALER	Upfitter reports the date they delivered the vehicle to the dealer
MFR - RECEIVED AT DLVRY LOC	OEM reports the vehicle has been received at the delivery location



## - Renewal tools

Did you know ePlan offers several tools to help you stay on top of registration renewals? Be sure to take advantage of dashboards, exception lists and reports to keep your fleet in compliance and drivers on the road.

### Home Page Dashboards

ePlan's home page dashboards provide a visual look at your fleet's open renewals. You can click into any of the dashboards to drill down to different segments of data and view a list of your fleet's renewal statuses.

- Registration Renewal Coming Due provides an overview of renewals by state. Keep in mind processing times and registration requirements can vary from state to state, and often county to county. This a great tool to help you manage your most affected states.
- Registration Renewal shows you where your fleet's renewals are in the process. Our experts recommend reviewing the "91-120 days out" segment to assure your driver data is accurate for streamlined service.







To streamline the renewal process, many fleet managers use the available reports to communicate with their drivers who need to provide documents to complete the renewals. This could be a smog, emission or safety inspection.

Ensuring driver email addresses are correct in ePlan, and utilizing this as your preferred method of communication, helps us contact your drivers in the most efficient manner.

We recommend you always review your driver's address for accuracy – including state, county, along with the vehicle's garage address (if utilized).



### Home Page Exceptions List

It's important to maintain the plate number and expiration date in ePlan so we can stay on top of your vehicle registration needs.

**Missing Registration Info** – Use this quick link to monitor vehicles with missing tag information. Then, click into any record to add missing plate number and expiration date.

To configure your home page with these tools, expand the Dashboard Preferences by clicking the arrows on the right side of the screen. Then select Exceptions, Registration Renewal and Registration Renewal Coming Due.



Dashboard Preferences	≥≿
Exceptions	*
Eleet Summary (Text View)	
Fuel Cards Not Being Used	
Fuel Exceptions	
Fuel Expense Trending	
Immediate Action Requested	
Maintenance Cost Categories	
Maintenance Non-Utilization	





Need to brush up on state registration requirements? Navigate to the Services tab, select License & Title and then State Requirements.

You can view registration copies, communications and corresponding documents by clicking on the Images Tab under the vehicle profile.

To view how the registration was sent (FedEx or USPS) and any available tracking information, click on the Renewal Tab from the vehicle profile.



### Key Indicators

Red ! on Driver Profile – indicates there is an outstanding state requirement preventing the renewal of the registration.



+ State Conflict Status – this means that the registration address does not match the license plate state. To resolve this, you can request a state change right in ePlan or work with your account manager for any other needs.

Plate#	ABC1234			
Plate State	GA			
Plate Expiration Date	04/23/2021	[Create Power Of Attorney]		
Decal#				
Renewal Status	State Change Co	onflict		
Plate Type	Passenger			

	ePlan Unit#	Client Unit#	Driver Name	Year/ Ma	ke/ Model	VIN	Plate#	Plate Expiration Date	Plate State
L	12345	12345	🙆 PARKS, ELLE	2021 / FO	RD / FUSION	ABC123456789	0 ABC1234	12/31/2021	GA
	Status			Change By	Changed Da	ate – In	nage Name		
	State Ch	ange Conflict	t		05/25/202	1 11:59:59			
	State Cha	ange Conflict		JESSI8	05/25/202	1 07:59:14			
	Ready to	Apply		System	05/08/202	1 05:00:45			
	Ready to	Renew		System	05/08/202	1 05:00:45			



The MyLeasePlan app offers drivers the most interactive experience with LeasePlan - allowing the ability to upload documents, locate vendors, check order status, review your fleet policy with the help of Elle and more! Contact your account manager to get enrolled today.



#### keep in mind

LeasePlan's renewal process begins 90 days prior to the expiration date. The registration will either be mailed by LeasePlan or the DMV to the address on file, so be sure to keep driver's addresses up-to-date in ePlan.

If a vehicle is temporarily out of service, it's important to let us know to so we can properly manage the renewal.



## + Requesting replacement documents

Do you ever have a driver who has lost their fuel card, misplaced their insurance certificate, or left their driver kit at a maintenance provider? It does happen from time to time. That's why we've made it easy to request a replacement right from ePlan.

## How to request replacement driver kits, fuel or EV RFID cards, insurance cards or vehicle maintenance guides



To request replacement documents and materials in ePlan, navigate to the **Fleet** tab and enter the search criteria to locate the corresponding vehicle. Once you click into the vehicle record using the icon on the left,

click the Forms tab and then select Vehicle Management Material(s) Replacement.

From here, it's easy to use the **Replacement Order Request** form to select the documents needing replacement. Simply select materials on an individual basis, or select the Driver Kit option, which includes replacements for all materials.

When you're ready to submit your request, **confirm the mailing address** and shipping method.



	eet List / Forms / Vehicle Manager		Search	1	
Replacement Orde			Last Name		Search
ePlan Unit# Fn 1339	Client Unit# Driver Name APPTEST OParks, Elle		IET/ MALIBU LTZ	VIN XXXTESTAPPXXXXX	XXX
Replacement Order Re	request				
Replacement Type	Driver Kit     Fuel Card or EV RFID Card     Insurance Card		Replacement Reason	Lost	V
	Vehicle Maintenance Guide				
Requested By Request Date	epurali 2021-10-13 15:53:50 PM EDT				
Mailing Address					
Driver Name	Parks, Elle				
Address 1	LEASE PLAN U.S.A. INC.		1		
Address 2	5350 Keystone Court		1		
Address 3			1		
Address 4			1		
Country	O 🕈 Canada 🖲 🎫 USA				
Zip	60008	Find Zip By State			
State	ILLINOIS	*			
City	ROLLING MEADOWS				
County	COOK *				
Overnight Shipping?	Oyes SNo				
Comments					



### How to request a replacement registration

Summary In ages Ionte / Fleet Search /		CARLES COMPANY & COMPANY	ion Driver History Leve ary		Sean	Contraction of the		ermation F		
/ehicle Summa	ni				ePlan	Unit# Y	-	-		Search
ePlan Unit#	Client Unit#	Driver Name	Year/Mak	and the second s				VIN		
2 1234	1234	Elle Parks	2020/NIS	SAN/ NV (	CARGO NV	2500 HD	_	ABC1234	DEF4560	GHI789
ehicle Information										
Plan Unit=	the second s	ident No Open Serv	ices		Date in S	ervice		03/12/20	20	
Client Unit#	1234	the open peri				n Service		18		
Class	Default C	lass			First Bill	and the second second		06/01/20	20	
Status		Closed-End			Odomete	er.		5,530		
Program Type	2ª-Lease	d include Fleet Ma	nagement		Odomete			09/17/20	21	
Maint, Plan	Partner P	lan			Exterior	Color		GLACIER V	VHITE	
Spec Code					Interior (	Color		GRAY		
/IN	ABC1234	DEF456GHI789			Paint Stri	ipe Color				
rear/Make/Model	2020/ NI	SSAN/ NV CARGO	NV2500 HD		Seat			PREMIUM	CLOTH S	SEATS
linim	3DR REAL	R-WHEEL DRIVE H	IGH ROOF CARGO VAN	S V6	Engine S	ize	1	4.0L		
Cylinders	8				Drive Typ	be	1	RWD		
Fuel Type	Gas				Transmis	sion	1	A - Automa	atic	
Tank Capacity	28				Owner		1	Lease Plan	U.S.A.	LT
FM Start Date	05/26/2	020			FM Termi	ination Da	ate			
/ehicle on PMR	No				Vehicle C	on Toll Ser	rvice 1	Yes		
ease Termination Da	ite									
CO2 Emissions 🔞	19,330.3	5 lbs/ 8.77 mt /	8,768,099.27 g							
ssigned Driver		1.								
	iver Name		Address	City		State		Class		sername
123456789 Ell	e Parks <u>Change</u>	Driver?	1165 Sanctuary Parkway	ALPHAF	RETTA	GA	30004	Default C	lass	
arage Information										
Address										
City / State / Zip / Co	ountry /	11							_	
lilling Info [View by	DescriptionIfV	iew Level History]								
Company	LeasePlan	New Sector Provential							_	
	12.34									-
lob Code										Rep

To request a replacement registration card, navigate to the **Vehicle Detail** tab on a vehicle record. Scroll down to the **Plate Information** section and click the **Replacement Request** link.

From here, you have the option to request replacement plates or decals, or make a change to a vehicle's registration details.

Click **submit** when you've made the selection. The replacement registration will be mailed to the address shown on the screen.





#### expert tips

Did you know? You can also use the FastPath Access on the home page to quickly navigate to the Vehicle Management Material Replacement form.

Digital copies of Vehicle Maintenance Guides and Registration documents can also be found in ePlan. While on a vehicle record, navigate to **Images** under the Vehicle Detail and search the Available Leased Images section.

Drivers using the MyLeasePlan app can also upload or view digital copies of Registration and Vehicle Maintenance Guides, when available, in the Glovebox.





Mu Ca

0

...

益

>>ePlan

II I If you are not

atenories 0

. Bar Chart

best practices

When requesting replacement materials, be sure to select the corresponding reason for replacement in the drop-down menu. Selecting lost or stolen will terminate the fuel card immediately.

Sometimes fuel cards can get left in the wrong vehicle. Remember fuel cards are assigned to vehicles, not drivers. Be sure to check the **Maintenance Information** section on the vehicle record to confirm you're requesting the correct card.

FM Contract#	LP1234		
Fuel Card	123400001234000123-400	Vendor	Wright Express
Vehicle Maintenance Guide#	12345		
Most Recent Fueling	09/14/2021		
Most Recent PM			

Search

55,114,355.00

\$1,111,041.00 \$4,003,314.00



## + Fleet reporting

As you look for ways to manage your fleet costs and streamline operations, be sure to take advantage of the valuable reports in ePlan. From gaining insight into the financial aspects of your fleet to viewing a comprehensive list of the vehicles and drivers, you can access it all from the Fleet Reporting section.

Let's take a look at some of the most popular reports in ePlan.

### **Executive Summary**

If you're focused on financial analysis, the **Executive Summary** report provides a view of your fleet's total cost of ownership by month. Many fleet managers use this report to get a comprehensive look at their overall fleet costs and to forecast future expenses.

Use this report to view your lease expenses, operating costs, maintenance and fuel transactions, remarketing results and more. The Executive Summary report also offers an overview of your active vehicle inventory, new vehicle orders, active drivers and total miles driven.

To access this report in **Fleet Reporting**, click **Expenses**, then **Cost of Ownership**.





Clent D: V (Spect All) V 1234	Date Range: Roling 13 Months	Billing Period Start Date: 11/01/2020	Billing Period End Date: 11/30/2021	Filter by Levels?  (Select All)  (No Level 1 Level 2	Level 1: 27 (Seect Al) 27 Al
Level 2: 2: (Select All) 2: (2) All	Level 3: V (Select Al) V As	Break Out by Level? None	Show Data Dictionary? No ~	1995 - 1 - 1	
(d.) ee	(8),00				
	1				
	•				
(20) (20)	Schedule Save Report Resu	and a second			

#### expert tips

Remember to customize your date ranges to analyze specific periods. You also have the option to summarize or filter data by levels, which is especially handy when comparing different segments of your fleet.

### did you know?

You can schedule any of ePlan's reports to be sent to you on a regular cadence, including monthly, weekly or daily. From Fleet Reporting, click the Schedule List icon at the top right of the screen. Then click the Create Schedule icon to select email recipients and schedule details.

Report to Schedule Description Recipient Reply To	Divers / "Active Drivers" Active Drivers Report elle.parks@leaseplan.com			
oc boc Subject	Active Drivers Report			
12 x : 00 Start and End Dates NOTE : Specify th Begin On :	e date to start and end this schedule. 11/18/2021	5100 CP : 11/18/2023 5100 CP : 11/18/2023 55 Sear	Inter the former to indust-	
	家 mining1 家 mining1 中 mining1		Printing Drivers with Household Dates 1 Dates	

#### best practices

If you ever need to make changes to your scheduled report, visit your Schedule Reports List and select the Edit Schedule icon. To Delete a report's schedule, select the report, and click the Delete icon.



### Fleet Inventory

The **Fleet Inventory** report is one of the most foundational reports fleet managers can use to find valuable information about the vehicles in their fleet. It should be your first source of information if you have a question about a vehicle in your fleet.

This report is also helpful when you need to validate driver assignments, driver contact details, vehicle location and more.



#### best practices

We recommend using the Fleet Inventory report to track important data points such as odometer reading, lease term, who is assigned to the vehicle, and location of the vehicle.

Client ID: Client All Client All 201224	Status: (devid An) 2. Active On Order Terminated	Vehicle Usage: V. Ideed Ali Active Vitershouse D V. Akovançe V. Executive Vehicles	they D	Include Nor No Model (% +	1	Model Ye	Vehicle Type: Vehicle Type: Vehi	Make (% + WillCost	8
Program Type: 20: Telef Ani 20: Telef Management Only: 20: Lanest on Pinet Mandemisco 20: Lanest Only: Level 2: 20: Clevel Ani 20: Ani		Chail Codel ⊘ (Steic AN) ⊘ (Steic AN) ⊘ (Steic AN) ⊘ (Steic AN) ↓ (Steic AN) ⊗				Level 1: CovertAti All Sare Default of To Show? No	Coturns		
	chedule Save Report Result		Countrained Marcel     Countrained		n Trybe		+ Year Make M	lodel and Client Unit	18



#### expert tips

You can analyze the exact information you want to view by configuring report parameters. Start by setting the filter criteria like vehicle status, usage or equipment to narrow down your report results.

**Report Selection** 

66

**Inventory and Status Reports** 

st of vehicles in the fleet, selectable by vehicle stati

rovides a replacement projection based on a Months In Service and a Mileage limit parameter

Units with Schedule A Imaged Provides a list of vehicles that have been set up for billing during the specified time period. The Sch

Units with Schedule B Imaged Provides a list of vehicles that have been terminated and sold during the specified time period. The on the sale of the vehicle.

Imassigned Units Provides a list of all active vehicles that are assigned to the Unassigned Driver ID that is stored in I

Image: Units Active During a Period Provides a list of units that were active during a selectable date range

Vehicle Order Status Shows current order status with information about turn-in vehicle.

Fleet Inventory Provides a compret

Report Selection

inventory and Status

Odometer Reports

Report Testing

Services Utilities

ontains reports pertaining to

ventory and order status

My Reports Drivers

Exceptions

Expenses

Many fleet managers find it useful to filter by their custom levels. And, if you need to trim down the report results, simply select - or deselect - the data to display in each column.

#### Lease Accounting **Report Selection** eport Selection 46 **Billing Reports** Standards My Reports Report Name Drivers Exceptions ✓ E Late Fees Billed Expenses Contains reports to help manage The Lease Accounting Standards report expenses provides data needed for lease accounting Inventory and Status Odometer Report

under the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (FASB) guidelines. It contains all vehicles that were billed for a lease payment in the reporting period.

This report includes key data points – like interest rate, book value, cap cost, depreciation, fees and taxes – that are needed to record your leases for accounting purposes.





### best practices

We recommend providing the Lease Accounting Standards report to your finance team monthly. It can be especially helpful at year-end to reconcile your lease accounting.



#### expert tips

To get a detailed look at what each data point means, select the option to "Show data dictionary". The dictionary will accompany your report on a new tab.

LeaséPlan



### Other reports we like

**Replacement Analysis:** This report provides you with insight on what vehicles need to be replaced and when. We recommend using it when planning for your new order cycles.

**Miles Driven in a Period:** This is a great tool to assess mileage trends across drivers by role type, state or any other segment of your fleet. It can also help to identify employees who are driving over or under mileage terms.

Active Drivers: This is one of the most used reports that provides a list of all employees who are active within the fleet. The Active Drivers report can be useful to verify driver addresses and contact information is up to date, in addition to vehicle assignment.





#### expert tips

These are just a few of the reports ePlan has to offer - there are many more you can use to gain insight into your fleet. We encourage you to explore all the reporting options in ePlan or use the search function to find a specific report.

#### did you know?

You can save your most frequently used reports to the My Reports section for quick access by clicking the check mark next to the report name.